
SWA 

Sinclair Water Authority 
126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Joseph D. Witcher Plant Manager 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, September 12, 2019 ◊ 5:30 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Public Participation 

Minutes 
3. Minutes - May 20, 2019 

Minutes 
4. Bonds Refinance with Bill Camp 

Reports I 
5. Manager's Report 

 Budget Calendar 

 Intake & Generator Update 

 Motion to discard old filters after new have been installed 

Reports II 
6. Plant Production Reports 

7. Financial Reports 

 2018 Audit 

Closing 
8. Next Meeting and Budget Adoption 

 November 18, 2019 

9. Adjournment 
  

1



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

3. Minutes - May 20, 2019 
  

2

Agenda Item 3.



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

May 20, 2019 

 

SWA 

Sinclair Water Authority 
126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Joseph D. Witcher Plant Manager 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 
 

Minutes 

Monday, May 20, 2019 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

The Sinclair Water Authority met on Monday, May 20, 2019 at approximately 5:00 PM at the 

Sinclair Water Plant, 126 Cay Drive, Milledgeville, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairperson Joan Minton 

Member Trevor Addison 

Member Sammy Hall 

Member Donna Van Haute 

Member David Waddell 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Plant Manager Joey Witcher 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairperson Minton called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes.) 

  

2. Public Participation 

None 

 

Minutes 
3. Minutes - March 18, 2019 

Motion to approve the March 18, 2019 minutes. 

Motion made by Member Addison, Seconded by Member Hall. 

Voting Yea: Chairperson Minton, Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, 

Member Waddell 

 

 

 

 

 

3

Agenda Item 3.



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

May 20, 2019 

 

New Business 
4. Bond Refinancing-Bill Camp 

Mr. Bill Camp, Managing Director of Raymond James, explained that this bond refinancing is 

refunding the existing debt.  It will keep the same term and final maturity date, but lower the 

payments to make savings.  He explained that a document was drafted a couple years ago but 

never completed due to some discussions between Putnam County and Baldwin County over the 

existing contract.  Mr. Camp provided a handout explaining the rates and a preliminary schedule 

of events. 

Motion to allow Raymond James to collect data to update the Preliminary Official 

Statement and for Bond Counsel to send due diligence questionnaires to SWA, Baldwin 

County and Putnam County.  

Motion made by Member Addison, Seconded by Member Van Haute. 

Voting Yea: Chairperson Minton, Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, 

Member Waddell 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes.) 

 

Reports I 
5. Manager's Report - Joey Witcher 

 Alex Wiseman Update (informational written memo) 

Plant Manager Witcher went over the memo from Carter & Sloope: 

 EPD has approved the proposed improvements to the Raw Water Pump Station and 

materials for the water supply line have been ordered. 

 The Generator Grant application was submitted on March 1, 2019, but no feedback 

received yet; award notifications are not expected until Fall 2019. 

 Carter & Sloope was contacted by EPD in early April 2019 requesting a new Permit 

application.  The application on file was submitted in August 2017 after completion of 

the last membrane replacement project but it was never processed by EPD.  When 

processing did begin in April of this year, the application was out of date and had to be 

resigned by the Chairperson and resubmitted.  SWA received the renewed Permit to 

Operate on May 10, 2019. 

 

6. SWA and Georgia Power Testing 

Motion to do annual testing at the SWA intake location at a cost of $8,996 funded through 

the CLO2 project. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Addison. 

Voting Yea: Chairperson Minton, Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, 

Member Waddell 

 

7. Boat Quotes 

Motion to purchase the 2019 Tracker Marine Tracker Topper 1542LW at a cost of $4,975 

funded through the membrane replacement fund. 

Motion made by Member Addison, Seconded by Member Waddell. 

Voting Yea: Chairperson Minton, Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, 

Member Waddell 

 

 

4

Agenda Item 3.



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

May 20, 2019 

 

8. Policy to establish Procedural Requirements for the consideration of Action Items during the 

regular called meetings of the Board as presently proposed and as they may hereafter be 

rescheduled 

Motion to approve the Resolution to establish procedural requirements for the 

consideration of action items during the regular called meetings of the board as presently 

proposed and as they may hereafter be rescheduled with the following amended first 

sentence in item #1: “The Plant Manager shall prepare a detailed agenda on the subjects to 

be covered or acted on, and/or objectives to be met three days before each regular 

scheduled meeting, work session, and/or public hearing; and 24 hours before a called 

meeting.” 

Motion made by Member Addison, Seconded by Member Waddell. 

Voting Yea: Chairperson Minton, Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, 

Member Waddell 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes.) 

 

9. Bank Interest Rates Update 

Plant Manager Witcher advised that Exchange Bank has best rate, which is where the money 

currently is.  There is some money in a CD and some in an interest bearing checking account.  

He recommended leaving everything as is.  No action was taken. 

 

10. Proposals; Suez, Scinor & Evoqua - see Christian Henry opinion memo 

Attorney Christian Henry reviewed the proposed Suez contract and didn’t see anything out of the 

ordinary.  Plant Manager Witcher advised that Suez has the best warranty and recommended 

staying with them. 

Motion to enter into contract with Suez for 10 year payment plan at a cost of $1,407,470 

funded with the membrane replacement fund. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Addison. 

Voting Yea: Chairperson Minton, Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, 

Member Waddell 

 

Reports II 
11. Plant Production (informational) 

Chairperson Minton advised that the Plant Production reports were in the meeting package to 

review.  No action was taken. 

 

12. Financial Reports (informational) 

Chairperson Minton advised that the Financial reports were in the meeting package to review.  

No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
13. Next Meeting 

Chairperson Minton advised that the next meeting is scheduled for July 22, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

Agenda Item 3.



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

May 20, 2019 

 

14. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Member Addison, Seconded by Member Van Haute. 

Voting Yea: Chairperson Minton, Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, 

Member Waddell 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 5:45 p.m. 
 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Joan Minton 

Clerk        Chairperson 

 

6

Agenda Item 3.



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

4. Bonds Refinance with Bill Camp 
  

7

Agenda Item 4.



 

 

POLICY WITH RESPECT TO TAX-EXEMPT DEBT 

 

 

OBJECTIVE 

To comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations related to the issuance 

of tax-exempt debt (the “Debt”). 

 

SCOPE 

This policy (the “Policy”) applies to all Debt issued for the benefit of Sinclair Water Authority and 

its related entities. 

 

POLICY 

Sinclair Water Authority shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and regulations related 

to the issuance of Debt. 

 

RESPONSIBILITY 

The Finance Officer shall be administratively responsible for the Policy.  The Finance Officer shall 

be responsible for reviewing the requirements and responsibilities of Sinclair Water Authority 

under the Policy with bond counsel on or before the closing date of any Debt issued by Sinclair 

Water Authority. 

 

DISSEMINATION AND TRAINING 

The Policy shall be disseminated to all personnel in the finance department and to the auditor.   

 

Sinclair Water Authority shall provide appropriate training to all personnel directly involved in the 

administration of tax-exempt debt to ensure they comply with the provisions of the Policy.  The 

Finance Officer shall consult as appropriate with qualified attorneys with respect to the content of 

such training. 

 

REVIEW 

The Policy shall be reviewed and revised annually by the Finance Officer and redistributed to all 

personnel in the finance department and to the auditor. 

 

The Finance Officer shall annually conduct a due diligence review of all Debt currently 

outstanding to ensure proper compliance with each of the provisions of the Policy.  If the Finance 

Officer discovers non-compliance with any provisions of the Policy, steps necessary to correct the 

noncompliance will be taken within ten (10) business days of the conclusion of the annual due 

diligence review.  Records of all corrective action taken shall be retained in accordance with the 

Policy. 

 

PROVISIONS 

 

Record Keeping 

All records relating to the Debt needed to comply with Section 6001 of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) shall be maintained.  These records shall be kept in paper or 

electronic form and shall include, among other things, (i) basic records relating to the transaction 

8

Agenda Item 4.



 

 

(including the bond documents, the opinion of bond counsel, etc.), (ii) documents evidencing the 

expenditure of the proceeds of the Debt, (iii) documentation evidencing the use of Debt-financed 

property by public and private entities (e.g., copies of management contracts, leases and research 

agreements) and (iv) documentation pertaining to any investment of Debt proceeds (including the 

purchase and sale of securities, SLG subscriptions, yield calculations for each class of investments, 

actual investment income received from the investment of the proceeds of the Debt, guaranteed 

investment contracts and rebate calculations.  Such records must be maintained as long as the Debt 

is outstanding, plus three years after the final payment or redemption date of the respective Debt. 

 

Use of Proceeds 

A list of all property financed with the proceeds of the Debt shall be created and maintained.  The 

use of such property shall be monitored to ensure that such use does not constitute “private business 

use” within the meaning of the Code.  Without limiting the foregoing, each contract, including but 

not limited to management contracts and leases, relating to such property shall be reviewed by 

legal counsel prior to the execution of such contract.  The list of property shall be reviewed at least 

annually to ensure that none of the property has been sold. 

 

Remedial Action 
In the event that property financed with the proceeds of the Debt is used in a manner that constitutes 

“private business use” or the property is sold, the remediation provisions of Treasury Regulation 

§ 1.141-12 shall be carried out in consultation with bond counsel. 

 

Yield Restriction 
If bond counsel advises that a fund or account needs to be yield restricted (i.e., not invested at a 

yield in excess of the Debt), the moneys on deposit in such fund or account shall be invested in 

United States Treasury Obligations – State and Local Government Series, appropriate “yield 

reduction payments” shall be made if permitted by the Code or the Finance Officer shall establish 

other procedures to ensure that such fund or account is yield restricted. 

 

Rebate 

At the time the Debt is issued, the Finance Officer shall determine if he or she reasonably expects 

that one of the arbitrage rebate exceptions will be satisfied.  If the arbitrage rebate exception relates 

to the time period over which the proceeds of the Debt are spent, the Finance Officer shall verify 

that the appropriate expenditures have been made at each milestone.  If one of the milestones is 

not satisfied or the Finance Officer does not reasonably expect that one of the arbitrage rebate 

exceptions will be satisfied, an outside arbitrage rebate consultant shall be retained unless the 

Finance Officer has determined that positive arbitrage will not be earned. 

 

Continuing Disclosure 

Any continuing disclosure undertaking entered into by Sinclair Water Authority with respect to 

Debt shall be recorded and complied with.  Finance Officer shall catalogue and determine any 

continuing disclosure undertaking entered into by Sinclair Water Authority prior to the imposition 

of the Policy to ensure that its continuing disclosure obligations will be updated and satisfied going 

forward. 

 

9

Agenda Item 4.



 

 

Finance Officer will implement appropriate procedures to ensure that annually recurring disclosure 

obligations are timely fulfilled.  Upon the occurrence of an event requiring the filing of an events 

notice under any continuing disclosure obligation, Finance Officer will ensure such event notice 

is filed within ten (10) business days of the occurrence of such event. 

 

10

Agenda Item 4.



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

5. Manager's Report 

Budget Calendar 

Intake & Generator Update 

Motion to discard old filters after new have been installed 
  

11

Agenda Item 5.



12

Agenda Item 5.



13

Agenda Item 5.



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

6. Plant Production Reports 
  

14

Agenda Item 6.



15

Agenda Item 6.



16

Agenda Item 6.



17

Agenda Item 6.



18

Agenda Item 6.



19

Agenda Item 6.



20

Agenda Item 6.



21

Agenda Item 6.



22

Agenda Item 6.



23

Agenda Item 6.



24

Agenda Item 6.



25

Agenda Item 6.



26

Agenda Item 6.



27

Agenda Item 6.



28

Agenda Item 6.



29

Agenda Item 6.



30

Agenda Item 6.



31

Agenda Item 6.



32

Agenda Item 6.



33

Agenda Item 6.



34

Agenda Item 6.



35

Agenda Item 6.



36

Agenda Item 6.



37

Agenda Item 6.



38

Agenda Item 6.



39

Agenda Item 6.



40

Agenda Item 6.



41

Agenda Item 6.



42

Agenda Item 6.



43

Agenda Item 6.



44

Agenda Item 6.



45

Agenda Item 6.



46

Agenda Item 6.



47

Agenda Item 6.



48

Agenda Item 6.



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

7. Financial Reports 

2018 Audit 
  

49

Agenda Item 7.



50

Agenda Item 7.



51

Agenda Item 7.



52

Agenda Item 7.



53

Agenda Item 7.



54

Agenda Item 7.



55

Agenda Item 7.



56

Agenda Item 7.



57

Agenda Item 7.



58

Agenda Item 7.



59

Agenda Item 7.



60

Agenda Item 7.



61

Agenda Item 7.



62

Agenda Item 7.



63

Agenda Item 7.



64

Agenda Item 7.



65

Agenda Item 7.



66

Agenda Item 7.



67

Agenda Item 7.



68

Agenda Item 7.



69

Agenda Item 7.



70

Agenda Item 7.



71

Agenda Item 7.



72

Agenda Item 7.



73

Agenda Item 7.



74

Agenda Item 7.



75

Agenda Item 7.



76

Agenda Item 7.



77

Agenda Item 7.



78

Agenda Item 7.



79

Agenda Item 7.



80

Agenda Item 7.



81

Agenda Item 7.



82

Agenda Item 7.



83

Agenda Item 7.



84

Agenda Item 7.



85

Agenda Item 7.



86

Agenda Item 7.



87

Agenda Item 7.



88

Agenda Item 7.



89

Agenda Item 7.



90

Agenda Item 7.



91

Agenda Item 7.



92

Agenda Item 7.



93

Agenda Item 7.


	Top
	1. 20190912 SWA Call to Order
	2. 20190912 SWA Public Part
	3. 20190912 SWA Minutes
	3.DRAFT 2019-05-20 SWA Minutes

	4. 20190912 SWA Bonds
	4.Tax Policy and Procedures Sinclair Water Authority 2019 (00105703xA91E4)

	5. 20190912 SWA Manager Report
	5.Budget Calendar
	5.Plant Manager&#39;s Report

	6. 20190912 SWA Plant Reports
	6.Plant Production Reports

	7. 20190912 SWA Financials
	7.2018 Audit

	8. 20190912 SWA Next Meeting
	9. 20190912 SWA Adjourn
	Bottom

